MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
MAYOR AND COUNCIL
OF THE BOROUGH OF FRANKLIN
HELD AT THE FRANKLIN MUNICIPAL BUILDING
46 MAIN STREET, FRANKLIN, NJ
APRIL 8, 2025

Mayor Sowden called the meeting to order and requested the Borough Clerk to call
the roll. Upon roll call, the following members of the Governing Body were present:
Mrs. Carnes, Mr. Formica, Mrs. Heath, Mr. Limon, Mr. Skellenger, Mr. Snyder and
Mayor Sowden.

Absent: None

Mayor Sowden led the assembly in the flag salute.

Mayor Sowden stated "This meeting is being held in compliance with the
provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 et sequentes. It has
been properly advertised by posting in Borough Hall and printed in the New Jersey
Herald/Sunday New Jersey Herald on January 12, 2025, and posted on the Borough
website, which adequate notice has been certified by the Clerk."

PRESENTATIONS
There were no presentations for tonight’s meeting.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Mr. Limon had nothing to report.

Mrs. Carnes had nothing to report.

Mr. Snyder commented that there was a Finance meeting and we discussed the
budget which will be introduced at the next meeting. We talked about the capital
projects for the various departments. There will be another meeting on Thursday,
April 11, 2025 and possibly next Tuesday, April 15, 2025.

Mrs. Heath thanked Mr. Skellenger for making the arrangements for the Motor
Vehicle Commissions Mobile Unit. On June 18 through June 22 the Recreation
Committee will be holding a carnival. Easter Egg Hunt Saturday, April 19, 2025 at
10am at the Franklin Pond.

Mr. Skellenger commented that we are gathering a list of properties that can go up
for auction.

Mr. Formica commented that the Eagle Scout will start his project this weekend.
The old equipment at the DPW will be auctioned off soon. DPW will be repairing the
last step going up the monument and we are getting prices for new railings.

Ms. Little commented that an email was sent out regarding the filing of the 2025
Financial Disclosure Statements.

Administrator Spidaletto commented that the budget introduction will be on the next
meeting.

Mayor Sowden commented that he is bringing back the discussion that we have
been having regarding the Edison School House/Hungarian Church. He asked if
anyone had new ideas about the building Should the property be sold.

Mr. Skellenger commented that we discussed it at the last meeting. We brought up
the idea of a referendum. Mr. Skellenger feels that estimates can be obtained for
fixing the building. There are two options, present it to the voters to see how they
vote but if you have concrete numbers to put in a referendum, | have no problem
with that.

Mrs. Carnes commented that we need numbers whether it is for a referendum or for
the town to fix the building.



MAYOR & COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 8, 2024

Mrs. Heath commented that it was never meant to have the taxpayers money used
for that building.

Mr. Formica commented that the only thing we hear about it, every once in a while,
there is never anything concrete, no numbers to support any of the repairs and | saw
the article today, the building has been there 20 years. Mr. Formica commented that
he thinks it time to take a serious look at how it became and what we are going to do
with it.

Mr. Skellenger commented to add to after November, if its on the referendum, this
will be over. It has been 20 years in the making.

Mr. Limon commented that he liked the idea of the Historic Designation just for the
fact that Franklin left the right criteria for that and | think we would have found
alternate funding for that. When you have a referendum, that costs money.

Mr. Snyder commented that there could be a liability issue there. Is there something
that we can do to maybe correct some of those problems with that building falling
apart.

Mr. Formica commented that we could have the building department take a look at it
and see what they feel, if its condemnable or salvageable. Mr. Formica feels that
should be our first course of action.

Mr. Snyder commented that it is our building.

Mr. Formica commented that yes, we inherited the building. Mr. Formica
commented that this was a long story behind it, from the vote that got it there to the
mortgage to the defaulting to the town inheriting it. Mr. Formica commented that he
has the lease agreement and the minutes from the meetings back then. Mr. Formica
commented that if you want this project to move forward, do the leg work, do the
research, find out what the costs would be and see what direction we are going to
head in to.

OPEN PUBLIC SESSION
Mr. Skellenger made a motion to open the meeting to the public for anyone wishing
to address the Governing Body. Seconded by Mrs. Heath. All were in favor.

Ms. Laurie Foley stepped forward. Ms. Foley spoke about the article that was in the
Advertiser News regarding the development of the Zinc Mine Site. Ms. Foley
commented that she is not in favor this project.

Mr. Ursin commented that the Council did pass a redevelopment plan that allows the
possibility of a development on that site. Since that date nothing has happened. No
proposal has been and no application has been made to the town. The developer
putting the press release out did not come from the town; it came from the developer
and it could be what they are coming in to propose.

Ms. Foley asked if there is any possibility for the town to reach out. This article was
released in three local papers and covered all of Sussex County and it was even on
WSUS. Ms. Foley commented that she went to their website and they are extolling
the virtues of Zinctown Parc, complete with all the photographs and its written as if
its already a fore gone conclusion that it will be built starting next year.

Mr. Ursin commented that the town does not sign a contract. The developer goes to
the property owner and enters into a contract. The contract will have an approval
time period and the developer will then have that time period to come to the town
and make the application.

Ms. Foley commented that there is nothing we can do to reach out and find out what
is going here.

Mr. Ursin commented that you are tax payers and you have a voice. | would not tell
you there is nothing you can do because you are doing it. We are not used to

2



MAYOR & COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 8, 2024

seeing so many in the audience and | presume that most people are to say that they
are not in favor of the development. You are doing what you can do which is
showing that there is a good number of people who are not in favor of what they
read about in the paper. Mr. Ursin stated that he wants to make it crystal clear, we
can’t control the developer if they do a press release.

Ms. Lois Sipelli stepped forward. Ms. Sipelli spoke about the article that was in the
Advertiser News regarding the development of the Zinc Mine site. Ms. Sipelli
commented that she is not in favor of the development.

Mr. Ursin commented that if you have done your research, the application will not be
made before this Council. This Council does not vote on the application. If you
have information that you think is helpful about the background of the other projects,
who can present that at the Planning Board if that application gets filed. For the
purposes of tonight’s council meeting, we understand that you are making the point
that you are not in favor of the development.

Mr. Russ Nelson stepped forward. Mr. Nelson commented that he feels they should
not do this project. He feels that the area is not big enough for it, the traffic is
already bad up through here and the infrastructure is not set up for it.

Ms. Dawne Rowe stepped forward. Ms. Rowe commented that she is not in favor of
the project.

Mrs. Judy Williams stepped forward. Mrs. Williams commented that she is
concerned about the size of the buildings and the amount of traffic this development
would cause. Mrs. Williams voiced her concerns regarding the development. Mrs.
Williams asked if the Council can reverse a vote of the planning board should it be in
the negative or the positive.

Mr. Ursin commented that the Town Council does not review planning board votes.

Mrs. Williams commented that if this gets that far the Planning Board can do its thing
and make their decision and then that goes off to the Council. Mrs. Williams asked
what happens with the redevelopment. Mrs. Williams asked what does
redevelopment mean.

Mr. Ursin commented that a redevelopment plan has many facets that are relevant
tonight but unlike regular zoning, a redevelopment plan is with respect to one
particular piece of property. The Council’s role is to review a redevelopment plan to
determine if they think the development should occur at a particular site.

Mrs. Williams commented that she is very concerned about the magnitude of this
project, the physical size, the type of traffic it would generate and the number of
children. Mrs. Williams commented that the Edison School House/Hungarian
Church has been a sore spot for years and she understands that. She would do
everything in her power to see what could be done with the building; it was always
meant to be a community center for Franklin Borough. Mrs. Williams commented
that an idea she has had and could possibly work out is a library extension.

Ms. Lauire Foley stepped forward. Ms. Foley asked that last year when the master
plan was revised to allow these large developments and it was voted on in the
affirmative. Ms. Foley commented that during the revision process of this plan and
you thought about how you would vote and before you voted, was any research or
consideration done to attempt to determine how residents felt about large scale
developments in their town.

Mr. Ursin commented the Council voices its opinions, it forms thoughts about it and it
gets feed back from the Planner and other professionals.

Ms. Foley commented that as you are beginning to understand how we as the
residents feel, in the future, if it was really determined that this was not the best
course of action for Franklin and its residents, is there a way, now that we have
already approved and filed with the State the master plan, to close that door again.

3



MAYOR & COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 8, 2024

Mr. Ursin commented that it is a redevelopment plan and the Council controls it
which means the Council could revise it.

Mr. Shane Hrbek stepped forward. Mr. Hrbek commented that the only
consideration he has is there a feasibility survey or study that will discern the
revenue and the expenses. Mr. Hrbek commented that as some of the people have
already mentioned a new fire truck is $1 million, a place to put it; he commented that
he could do something as simple as with the school system If you have 1,100 units
and 1 out of every 4 has a child that goes to school that is 240 students, that is 30
kids in a class, 8 teachers and the starting salary for a teacher is $56,000, that is
$450,000 a year added to your budget not counting benefits or if the child has
special needs. Mr. Hrbek commented that he wants to see progress but he does not
want 20 years of the old school house with the new project without doing a feasibility
survey we could have the same problem. Mr. Hrbek commented that the Forward
Franklin Alliance donated wood for the roof for the Edison School House, 7 years
ago; do not know where the wood is or where the roof is.

Mayor Sowden commented that it was never used.
Mr. Hrbek asked where did the money go.
Mayor Sowden commented that it was not taken.

Ms. Renee Zierold stepped forward. Ms. Zierold commented that she really
appreciates Mr. Formica with his diligence talking about the Hungarian Church and
the building because he wanted to look at what it would cost the town for a roof or
foundation. Ms. Zierold asked if there are additional water supplies that we can look
at.

Mr. Ursin commented that the Borough has the water capacity based upon its
system and the water capacity is determined by the NJDEP. Mr. Ursin commented
that the DEP does a review of our system, review of our backup, review of excess of
capacity and then the DEP tells the Borough how much water they can give out to
new projects. Mr. Ursin commented that right now the Borough has enough water
for the town; the water supply is stable and there is some excess capacity, not a lot,
so any development that comes in town whether it's the development that we are
talking about tonight or another development, there might be enough water for them,
they would have to prove it by going to the DEP or there would have to be
improvements to the water system to increase the capacity.

Ms. Zierold commented that would be the responsibility of the developer.

Mr. Ursin commented that it would be the responsibility of the developer. Mr. Ursin
explained that when the super Walmart was proposed, it was going to need extra
water and there was a substantial contribution to the water system to upgrade the
water system to facilitate that development.

Ms. Zierold commented that she is concerned about the amount of garbage and
where it is going to go. Ms. Zierold asked what are we getting out of this
development.

Ms. Keri Marino stepped forward. Ms. Marino asked what the responsibility of the
planning board and the standards they are held to when deciding on an application
and the COAH numbers that we are responsible for.

Mr. Ursin commented that all the questions that all the people have asked are all
legitimate issues that the planning board considers. The COAH numbers are
calculated through the State. Any development that goes any place in Franklin will
have affordable housing units because that is part of the rules going forward.

Mr. Gary Henson stepped forward. Mr. Henson commented that he is not in favor of

this development or any other development in town. Mr. Henson commented that he
would like to understand the process a little more. Mr. Henson commented that

4



MAYOR & COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 8, 2024

when a developer submits an application, it goes to the zoning or planning board
where it would be approved or denied. Once the application is approved, what is the
next process.

Mr. Ursin commented if the planning board approves any development; once that
development is approved then it has zoning approval and then the applicant, unless
somebody appeals, is then permitted to go the building department and get building
permits.

Mr. Henson asked if at that point the town people allowed, have rights in there, to go
against them once it has been approved, to fight it or go to court.

Mr. Ursin commented that generally the rule is that on a planning board decision any
interested party can appeal it and bring it to a court for review but it has to be
appealed within 45 days of the decision.

Ms. Christina Jean Jacques stepped forward. Ms. Jean-Jacques commented that
she is not in favor of the development. Ms. Jean-Jacques commented that she is
concerned with the additional influx of people, the school cannot handle the capacity
and it is going to affect all the children.

Mr. Manuel Bolano stepped forward. Mr. Bolano commented that he is not in favor
of the development. Mr. Bolano asked how the public would know or when is it
posted that it was agreed; how would we appeal it.

Mr. Ursin commented that this proposed application or any application everyone
within 200 feet of the site would receive individual notice and notice of the
application gets published in the paper and in the event that the planning board
approves it, the approval will also get published in the paper. The hearings are
public and they are on an agenda and the public is welcomed and invited.

Mr. Russ Nelson stepped forward. Mr. Nelson asked if there is some way that the
council could change the ruling they had.

Ms. Dawne Rowe stepped forward. Ms. Rowe asked what other types of
development can there besides 500 apartments.

There being no one else present who wished to address the Governing Body, Mr.
Skellenger made a motion to close the meeting to the public, seconded by Mr.
Snyder. All were in favor.

Mr. Ursin commented that he has attended a lot of meetings where people come
and voice their opinions. Mr. Ursin complimented the group of people in audience
because people expressed their opinions calmly and factually and not every one
said the same thing.

CONSENT AGENDA
Mayor Sowden requested that all persons present review the consent agenda and
offer any comments they may have at this time regarding the consent agenda.

CORRESPONDENCE (ACCEPTANCE FOR FILING ONLY OF THE FOLLOWING):

1. Preliminary Equalization Table for the year 2025.

2. Township of Frankford resolution supporting publishing legal notices on official
government websites.

3. Email from Todd Maginnis from Habitat for Humanity

REPORTS (ACCEPTANCE FOR FILING OF THE FOLLOWING):
Water/Sewer Division Report — March 17 — March 21
Water/Sewer Division Report — March 24 — March 28

Road Department Report — March 24 — March 28
Construction Permit List — March 2025

COH Report — March 2025

Permit Activity Report — March 2025

Road Department Report — March 31 — April 4

NookrwhE

5



MAYOR & COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 8, 2024

APPLICATIONS (APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING):
1. None filed.

RESOLUTIONS (APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING):
1. Payment of bills for the meeting of April 8, 2025.

Mr. Formica made a motion to approve the consent agenda of April 8, 2025.
Seconded by Mr. Skellenger.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None

OLD BUSINESS
Mr. Formica commented that after hearing the concerns of the citizens and what has
been read on social media regarding the possible development.

Mr. Formica made a motion to form a subcommittee to consist of himself, Mr.
Snyder, Mrs. Carnes and Mrs. Heath as an alternate member to meet with the
planner to discuss the heights of the buildings and the density and to revisit the plan.
Seconded by Mr. Skellenger.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: Limon Absent: None Abstentions: None

NEW BUSINESS

Approval of the Minutes

Mr. Skellenger made to motion to approve the regular meeting minutes for March 25,
2025. (Absent: None) Seconded by Mrs. Heath.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None

Resolution 2025-41

Mr. Limon made a motion to adopt Resolution 2025-41 authorizing the Borough
Clerk to renew ligquor license #1906-33-011-005 for the 2023-2024 licensing term.
Seconded by Mr. Skellenger.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None

Resolution 2025-42

Mr. Limon made a motion to adopt Resolution 2025-42 authorizing the Borough
Clerk to renew liquor license #1906-33-011-005 for the 2024-2025 licensing term.
Seconded by Mr. Skellenger.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None

Resolution 2025-43

Mr. Skellenger made a motion to table Resolution 2025-43, until the next meeting of
April 22, 2025, authorizing the person to person transfer of liquor license 1906-44-
007-007 issued to WC Franklin LLC to Akaal Liquors Corp. for premises located at
244 Route 23 North Franklin, NJ. Seconded by Mrs. Carnes.

Upon roll call vote to table:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None



MAYOR & COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 8, 2024

Adoption of Ordinance 02-2025

Mr. Formica made a motion to adopt Ordinance 02-2025 entitled “AN ORDINANCE
OF THE BOROUGH OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF SUSSEX AND STATE OF NEW
JERSEY AMENDING CHAPTER 119 OF THE CODE ENTITLED “FEES”.
Seconded by Mrs. Heath.

Prior to final roll call Mayor Sowden requested a motion to open the meeting to the
public for Ordinance 02-2025. Mr. Skellenger made a motion to open the meeting to
the public for Ordinance 02-2025. Seconded by Mr. Snyder. All were in favor.

There being no one present who wished to address the Governing Body, Mrs. Heath
made a motion to close to the meeting to public for Ordinance 02-2025. Seconded
by Mr. Snyder. All were in favor.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None

Adoption of Ordinance 03-2025

Mr. Skellenger made a motion to adopt Ordinance 03-2025 entitled “AN
ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF SUSSEX AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING CHAPTER 234 OF THE CODE ENTITLED
STREETS AND SIDEWALKS”. Seconded by Mr. Formica.

Prior to final roll call Mayor Sowden requested a motion to open the meeting to the
public for Ordinance 03-2025. Mrs. Heath made a motion to open the meeting to the
public for Ordinance 03-2025. Seconded by Mr. Skellenger. All were in favor.

There being no one present who wished to address the Governing Body, Mrs. Heath
made a motion to close the meeting to the public for Ordinance 03-2025. Seconded
by Mr. Skellenger. All were in favor.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None

Introduction of Ordinance 04-2025

Mrs. Heath made a motion to introduce Ordinance 04-2025 entitled “AN
ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF SUSSEX AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING CHAPTER 10 OF THE CODE ENTITLED
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS”. Seconded by Mr. Skellenger.

Mayor Sowden announced that the final reading will be held April 22, 2025.

Mayor Sowden commented that we do have people that are interested in serving on
the Historical Preservation Committee who no longer reside in the Borough and
would like to change the residency requirement and modify it to Sussex County.

Mr. Formica commented that we had a discussion during the ordinance committee
meeting and all three committees are now going to be residency required being that
they get to vote on funds and make decisions on the town.

Mayor Sowden commented that he feels that past residents of the Borough of
Franklin would be able to have some input on the Historical side of things.

Upon roll call vote:
Ayes: Carnes, Formica, Heath, Limon, Skellenger, Snyder
Nays: None Absent: None Abstentions: None

EXECUTIVE SESSION
Mayor Sowden commented that there was an executive session held prior to the
meeting from 6:30pm to 6:55pm.




MAYOR & COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES APRIL 8, 2024

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS
Mr. Formica commented that everyone had well thought questions and ideas. Mr.

Formica appreciates everyone that came out.

Mrs. Heath commented that it is nice to see people and to hear their thoughts on
projects and she thinks it is even nicer that the council is open to listening and
maybe changing our minds on some things.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further items for discussion by the Mayor and Council, Mrs. Heath
made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:19p.m., seconded by Mr. Formica.

All were in favor.

John M. Sowden IV, Mayor

Colleen L. Little, Municipal Clerk



